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          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I hope everybody

          3  enjoyed the summer and I hope you enjoy the fall and

          4  the winter and the spring and next summer as well.

          5                 We have a number of items today.

          6  Intro. 403, a local law to amend the administrative

          7  code of the City of New York in relation to allowing

          8  civil penalties for neglect of a landmark site or a

          9  site within a historic district.

         10                 Then we have, in Council Member

         11  Yassky's district, Brooklyn Community Board 2,

         12  20055019HKK, designation list 355LP2156 by the

         13  Landmark Preservation Commission pursuant section

         14  3020 of the New York City Charter of New York and

         15  New Jersey Telephone and Telegraph Building located

         16  at 81 Willoughby Street, Block 14A, Block 46

         17  Brooklyn.

         18                 In Councilman Stewart's district,

         19  Brooklyn Community Board 14, 20055020HKK,

         20  designation list 355LP2158 by the Landmark

         21  Preservation Commission pursuant to Section 3020 of

         22  New York City Charter of the Avenue H Station House

         23  located at 802 East 16th Street also known as 1518-

         24  1524 Avenue H, Block 6699. What does PO for stand

         25  for? Okay. Part of. I thought it meant something
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          2  else. Lot 4, Brooklyn. LU No. 213 in Council Member

          3  Quinn's district, Manhattan Community Board Five,

          4  20045688HKM, designation list 354LP2153 by the

          5  Landmark Preservation Commission pursuant to Section

          6  3020 of the New York City Charter of the Wilbraham.

          7  Is that how it is pronounced? Okay. One West 30th

          8  Street, Block 832, Lot 39 in Manhattan.

          9                 Finally, LU No. 214 in Council Member

         10  Yassky's district is being laid over. That's the

         11  last item. Do I have to read that out and then say

         12  it's laid over? I'm sorry. Thank you. Do I have read

         13  it and say it's laid over? So, LU 214 is laid over

         14  and there are three more, Council Member Koppell.

         15  There are three more.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: LU 240 in Council

         18  Member Quinn's district, Manhattan Community Board

         19  2, 20045687HKM, designation list No. 354LP215 by the

         20  Landmark Preservation Commission pursuant to Section

         21  3020 of the New York City Charter of the 131

         22  MacDougal Street House located on the West Side of

         23  MacDougal Street between West Third and West Fourth

         24  Street in Manhattan. LU 241, Council Member Quinn's

         25  district, Manhattan Community Board 2, 20045686HKM,
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          2  designation list no. 354LP2150 by the Landmarks

          3  Preservation Commission pursuant to Section 3020 of

          4  the New York City Charter of 129 MacDougal Street

          5  House located on the West Side of MacDougal Street

          6  between West Third and West Fourth Street in

          7  Manhattan. What was the difference between those

          8  two?

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: 129 and 131.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: They are

         11  different numbers?

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Yes, yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: And the third one

         14  is next door to that. LU 242, Manhattan Community

         15  Board 2 in Council Member Quinn's district,

         16  20045685HKM, designation list no. 354LP2149 by the

         17  Landmarks Preservation Commission pursuant to

         18  Section 3020 of the New York City Charter of 127

         19  MacDougal Street House located on the West Side of

         20  MacDougal Street between West Third and West Fourth

         21  Street in Manhattan.

         22                 Those are all the items that are on

         23  the agenda. It is my understanding from the list

         24  that we got that all the Council Members are in

         25  favor of the designations that we are about to
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          2  consider. The staff has distributed a grid that

          3  shows the rest of the information that's necessary.

          4                 We will now take testimony, Diane

          5  Jackier and Mark Silberman. I don't mind. Is there

          6  any else from a government agency that's here? Okay.

          7  So, I'm going to ask you both to come up together

          8  and you can address the items in whatever order

          9  you'd like. Or maybe we'll take care of the bill

         10  first if you don't mind and then we'll take care of

         11  the rest of the items. Before you testify, Council

         12  Member Avella, would you like to say anything about

         13  the bill that you're sponsoring.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chairman. Just a couple of quick words. In the City

         16  of New York, we're obviously very concerned about

         17  our heritage and we do everything we can to landmark

         18  buildings and historic districts. Unfortunately,

         19  there is a small bunch of property owners in the

         20  City who have by sheer neglect allowed these

         21  landmark structures to fall into total disrepair or

         22  in effect be demolished. This legislation would

         23  correct a gap in the enforcement powers by the City

         24  enabling the City to sue civilly for the value of

         25  the property and hopefully stop this practice from
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          2  happening in the future.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

          4  much for sponsoring a bill that I should have

          5  sponsored. Mr. Silberman.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

          7  is he going to testify on the bill?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I see, fine.

         10                 MR. SILBERMAN: Good morning Council

         11  Member Felder and members of the Subcommittee, my

         12  name is Mark Silberman, General Counsel to the

         13  Landmarks Preservation Commission. I'm here today on

         14  behalf of the Commission to testify in support of

         15  Intro. 403, which would amend the enforcement

         16  provision of the Landmarks Law, Administrative Code

         17  Section 25- 317.1 to authorize the Commission to

         18  seek civil penalties for the failure to maintain a

         19  designated structure in good repair.

         20                 Although, there are a number of

         21  technical and drafting issues that would need to be

         22  resolved before acting on this legislation, the

         23  Commission supports its primary thrust, which is to

         24  authorize civil and administrative penalties for

         25  violations of Section 25- 311 of the Landmarks Law.

                                                            8

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  This section places an affirmative duty on owners to

          3  keep their designated buildings or structures in

          4   "good repair." This obligation has never been

          5  interpreted to require that a building or other

          6  structure be maintained in perfect condition.

          7                 Historically, the Commission has

          8  invoked Section 311 where a building or structure

          9  is, or may become, structurally unsound or where

         10  defining architectural features are threatened. The

         11  duty set forth in Section 311 is the bulwark against

         12  what is known as demolition by neglect. Demolition

         13  by neglect occurs when an owner fails to maintain a

         14  building. It can result in the deterioration or loss

         15  of significant architectural features or, in its

         16  more pernicious expression, result in such

         17  structural damage to a building that it collapses or

         18  has to be demolished because it is an imminent

         19  hazard to the public.

         20                 Under the existing statutory scheme,

         21  the Commission must commence an action in New York

         22  Supreme Court for injunctive and other relief to

         23  enforce the duty to maintain. The Landmarks

         24  Protection Bill, Local Law No. 1 of 1998, which gave

         25  the Commission its authority for administrative and
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          2  civil penalties, did not include the express

          3  authority to obtain civil penalties for violations

          4  of Section 311.

          5                 Consequently, when a demolition by

          6  neglect situation arises, the Commission now must

          7  commence a full civil action in New York Supreme

          8  Court. The Administration is aggressively pursuing

          9  demolition by neglect cases in New York Supreme

         10  Court where existing conditions have created or

         11  could lead to severe structural instability and we

         12  are more proactive in threatening owners with legal

         13  action over serious maintenance issues. However, the

         14  time and expense associated with civil litigation

         15  significantly limits the ability of the Commission

         16  to effectively address maintenance issues that do

         17  not rise to the level of existing or potential

         18  structural instability.

         19                 Intro. 403 would fill this gap in our

         20  enforcement capability by giving the Commission the

         21  express authority to seek civil penalties for

         22  violations of Section 311 in a civil action in New

         23  York Supreme Court and in an administrative

         24  proceeding brought before the Environmental Control

         25  Board, the Office of Administrative Trials and
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          2  Hearings or other suitable administrative

          3  adjudicatory body. In practice, most demolition by

          4  neglect cases would be prosecuted in an

          5  administrative proceeding before the Environmental

          6  Control Board. Administrative fines will enhance the

          7  agency's ability proactively to confront maintenance

          8  issues by putting owners on notice that serious

          9  conditions exist and must be cured.

         10                 It should be emphasized again that

         11  the Commission has never interpreted the duty in

         12  Section 311 to require that a building be kept in

         13  perfect condition. Peeling paint, a broken window,

         14  delaminating brownstone will not be the focus of our

         15  enforcement efforts. Administrative actions for

         16  violations of Section 311 will be prosecuted

         17  pursuant to the existing enforcement system which is

         18  compliance driven.

         19                 This system gives owners two chances

         20  to cure violations before a civil penalty can be

         21  imposed. First, a warning letter with no penalty is

         22  issued. If the owner refuses to cure the illegal

         23  condition, an ECB notice of violation with a

         24  monetary fine is served. However, an owner can avoid

         25  the fine if he or she applies to cure the violation
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          2  prior to the ECB hearing and admits liability to the

          3  violation. If the owner still refuses to cure the

          4  problem, a second notice of violation is served and

          5  this time a penalty must be paid.

          6                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          7  testify and I would be happy to answer any questions

          8  you may have.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         10  much. I don't think we got a copy of your testimony.

         11  Is that right?

         12                 MR. SILBERMAN: I gave you 15 copies.

         13  I handed them to you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Did anyone get a

         15  copy? You have five copies.

         16                 MR. SILBERMAN: No, I handed them to

         17  her. I have extra copies. But I gave 15 copies to

         18  you.

         19                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Who did you

         20  give them to?

         21                 MR. SILBERMAN: You.

         22                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Not of your

         23  testimony.

         24                 MR. SILBERMAN: Yes. I have more.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: It's a
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          2  conspiracy.

          3                 MR. SILBERMAN: I have more. I'm happy

          4  to give you more copies now.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Before you give

          6  us more copies, I want the Sergeant of Arms to find

          7  out who took the first 15. (Laughter) Whatever it

          8  takes. If you have extra copies, then maybe we'll

          9  take them.

         10                 MR. SILBERMAN: No, I gave testimonies

         11  to you. I handed you a big packet of material.

         12  Anyway, that's fine.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay. Anyway,

         14  Avella is working with the Administration obviously.

         15  No, he just gave me this. Maybe everybody has it.

         16                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: They're under

         17  Simcha's arm.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I'm happy to

         19  inform you that the Sergeant of Arms found out who

         20  has been holding the 15 copies. I don't want to

         21  embarrass them publicly. So, we won't say anything.

         22                 Can you please explain to me what the

         23  law has added or changed because when we were just

         24  looking through the laws that existed and it seems

         25  like there is only one line or two lines that really
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          2  have changed or that have been italicize. Am I

          3  right? In the law that existed, right?

          4                 MR. SILBERMAN: You've correctly

          5  described the changes in the bill, yes. One or two

          6  lines have been changed.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Right. What

          8  specifically have you changed? Because when I read

          9  the first italicize line, it says the defendant has

         10  failed to take appropriate action to prevent any

         11  condition described from occurring and then it

         12  repeats itself. There has been failure to take

         13  appropriate actions, prevent conditions that are

         14  violated in this chapter.

         15                 MR. SILBERMAN: When the Landmarks

         16  Enforcement Bill was passed in 1998, there was

         17  express authority to seek civil penalties for

         18  violations of Section 311. Negotiations ensued with

         19  certain people who have issues with that and that

         20  eventually was removed from the legislation. The

         21  thrust of this and Council Member Avella and the

         22  Council have chosen to reintroduce that authority in

         23  a slightly different way than we had originally

         24  drafted it in 1998. Which is some of the technical

         25  issues that I had referred to that we would like to
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          2  sort of think about and talk to the Council about to

          3  make it perhaps fit more neatly within the

          4  enforcement system as it exists now. That basically

          5  is what it does. It gives the express authority to

          6  seek penalties both administrative fines as well as

          7  civil penalties for violation of Section 311 which

          8  is the Section that specifically says there is a

          9  duty to maintain your landmark.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay. Our

         11  Minority Leader, Council Member James Oddo.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         13  Chairman. I just would like to ask you a question

         14  and the witness a question. I would like to have my

         15  name added as a sponsor of the bill. Historically, I

         16  think I've been at times unnerved by pieces of

         17  legislation that have empowered the ECB because over

         18  the last couple of decades, it's on and off. It's

         19  really been more of a kangaroo court than anything.

         20  I think it's important that the witness testified

         21  about the fact that the individual has two

         22  opportunities to avoid receiving a fine. A warning

         23  letter and then after receiving a notice of

         24  violation. So, there really shouldn't be complaints

         25  that, oh, you're sending me to ECB instead of the
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          2  Supreme Court. And ECB is a kangaroo court. Yet

          3  you're going to have an opportunity to prove that

          4  you rectified the situation.

          5                 My question is, let's say we pass

          6  this bill. Does your agency at any point sit down

          7  with the folks at ECB and sort of educate them on

          8  landmarks or they just have a statute in front of

          9  them. They have a fact pattern and we leave it up to

         10  the administrative judges to kind of figure out

         11  whose right and whose wrong. Is there any training

         12  in background? I mean they're going to be dealing

         13  with a whole new area.

         14                 MR. SILDERMAN: Right now they are

         15  dealing with landmarks.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: They are?

         17                 MR. SILDERMAN: Yes, correct. Like for

         18  instance, work without a permit. Right there is a

         19  very extensive enforcement system that was enacted

         20  in 1998 that authorizes the Commission to seek

         21  administrative fines before the ECB that right now

         22  is currently working. There were over 900 warning

         23  letters issued last year and over 500, I'm sorry,

         24  300 notice of violations were issued that were sent

         25  to ECB. There is a system that's been now working
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          2  for approximately five years. There is some

          3  experience.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay. Even

          5  though it's black or white rather or not you have a

          6  work permit or you don't. Here it's a little bit

          7  more in the gray area and have you allowed this

          8  landmark site to kind of die on the vine. There is a

          9  little bit more of a judgment call. I'm just

         10  wondering, do they have to have anymore expertise of

         11  background on landmarking now with these new

         12  responsibilities as opposed to simply seeing whether

         13  or not the guy has got a permit or not.

         14                 MR. SILBERMAN: It's a good question

         15  and I think that when we first passed the bill in

         16  1998, we did discuss how it was going to be

         17  implemented with the ECB and we would likely do the

         18  same here as well.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I would just

         20  recommend that again because in various things over

         21  the last two decades, sometimes you go in there and

         22  it is a kangaroo court. I want people who allow

         23  landmark billings to be penalized. But I want them

         24  also to have fair process. From time to time, ECB

         25  has been a joke frankly. So, I would just raise that
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          2  issue. Thank you and congratulations, Tony.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

          4  Council Member Latitia James.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Good morning. I

          6  am a sponsor of this bill and support the bills

          7  intent. But the question I have is a technical

          8  question. The language of that was added

          9  specifically says, if the defendant has failed to

         10  take appropriate action. How can appropriate action

         11  be defined? How does one define appropriate action?

         12                 MR. SILBERMAN: I think in realty what

         13  will happen when a condition exists, the Commission

         14  will issue -- that's where the process, I think, is

         15  really important. That our enforcement proceedings

         16  really are compliant processes. It is not intended

         17  to primarily impose penalties or fines. What will

         18  happen is, if a condition exists, a cornices seems

         19  like its hanging or it is deteriorating, we will

         20  issue the warning letter. The idea behind that is

         21  that then starts the conversation with an owner to

         22  say, okay, how does this need to be fixed. In some

         23  cases, it may be as simple as reattaching the

         24  cornice. In other cases, it may be more extensive if

         25  it involves some structural work. But there will be
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          2  a process and a discussion.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay, thank you

          4  very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you. I just

          6  want to introduce my colleagues. You've just heard

          7  from Council Member Latitia James and we're

          8  delighted to have everybody here including Council

          9  Member Leroy Comrie our Majority Whip. And

         10  Councilman Tony Avella and Councilman Oliver Koppell

         11  and our Minority Leader, Councilman James Oddo.

         12                 I would like to bring up one issue

         13  with regard to the notification process. That's not

         14  only a problem, I think, with Landmarks, but a

         15  problem with City agencies in general. The way

         16  things work at this time most people in this City

         17  that receive mail or that City claims to have

         18  received mail, receives that mail with a 37 stamp or

         19  whatever the City pays for it, not certified return

         20  receipt. If its anything of significance, the City

         21  does not have necessarily the burden of proving that

         22  anyone got that mail.

         23                 When I deal with my constituents, if

         24  they have anything to do with any City agency, I

         25  tell them to send it certified return receipt and if

                                                            19

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  they can't afford the $4.00, I pay for it. It comes

          3  out of the City money anyway and then I bill it from

          4  the district budget. There is absolutely what's

          5  going on is that there is an inequity because the

          6  City does not legally, I guess, have the burden to

          7  prove that they received it. So, what I'm asking now

          8  with regard to the notification process, you said

          9  there are two steps and Council Member Oddo

         10  complemented you and I would complement you soon.

         11  Maybe. Is I want to know what proof you will have

         12  that these people receive those notifications? Are

         13  you going to send it certified return receipt?

         14                 MR. SILBERMAN: With demolition by

         15  neglect, the practice is now more often than not,

         16  there is actually an outreach by phone as well as by

         17   -- because the point is to start a conversation.

         18  Because we are talking about dealing with conditions

         19  and sometimes people don't have a lot money and

         20  you're trying to sort of work things out with them,

         21  I would anticipate that would be the same process.

         22  But we do send things by mail, by regular mail. But

         23  we also look them up in the phone book, send them

         24  messages. If we really feel like people aren't

         25  getting or completely ignoring us, we will then send
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          2  something return receipt.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: That was the

          4  answer that I wanted you to say. I don't like it.

          5  The reason I don't like it because even though

          6  you're trying to do your best, it's not good enough.

          7  Because unless somebody gets a letter and you have

          8  certified return receipt, at some point that the

          9  person was notified, they go into a file and it says

         10  on that such and such date, I made contact with Mr.

         11  Felder and he said I should go find a nice zoo to

         12  check out.

         13                 I don't know what happened. I'm not

         14  questioning. I don't believe that all civil service

         15  are devious and liars or everything else like that.

         16  But the same owners that we put on tax payers in

         17  this City, when they're suppose to send material in,

         18  if somebody says I called Landmarks and I told them

         19  x, y, and z and you say we have no record of it.

         20  That's what I would say if they said that to me. I

         21  don't have any record of it.

         22                 Yet, when the City is going to notify

         23  and really that's a warning because you're going to

         24  impose some sort of penalties, the owners making

         25  sure that person knows in advance is not there. I
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          2  don't think that's fair.

          3                 MR. SILBERMAN: The ECB notices of

          4  violation where there is an actual potential are

          5  personally served. In addition, where services are

          6  questioned, ECB does reopen cases where service is

          7  an issue.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Again, with the

          9  two steps of notification to belabor the point, with

         10  these two steps of notification, are you saying to

         11  me that the City will not unposed any penalty

         12  without having written proof that this person was

         13  notified that they have to correct whatever damage

         14  they have let occur?

         15                 MR. SILBERMAN: I can't answer that.

         16  ECB rules -- there are defaults and I think, because

         17  I don't know how ECB handles that. I can't answer

         18  the question. But I will look into it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Right. For the

         20  record, I am not in favor of not only of this, of

         21  any penalties being served on any taxpayer in this

         22  City unless the City can prove whether it's

         23  certified return receipt or something else

         24  specifically like that. Not by their computer input

         25  saying that we have on record that on March 5, we
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          2  called you. It doesn't work. It doesn't work. And we

          3  have many cases in our office, ECB cases, tax cases,

          4  other cases and this is what the case is all about.

          5  The case is about the City saying that we notified

          6  you. The taxpayer says, I never got anything. And

          7  again, I'm not saying everybody -- there are two

          8  sides to every story. But I think that when it comes

          9  to penalizing constituents and taxpayers, I think

         10  the onus has to be both ways.

         11                 If you're going to tell the taxpayer

         12  that we have no record and I'm telling you that I

         13  tell my constituents, if you're sending anything to

         14  the City, certified return receipt. The City should

         15  have to do the same thing. I can get them a discount

         16  if necessary.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman

         18   --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: First of all,

         21  I agree with what you've been saying and I think I

         22  have a solution. If you look at page three of the

         23  bill and you look at the sentence that starts on

         24  line 11 at the very end. Only one word is on that

         25  line, the. It says the warning letter shall inform
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          2  the respondent that the Chair believes that the

          3  respondent has violated a provision of this chapter.

          4  I think all it needs to say right in that sentence

          5  is that the warning letter which shall be sent

          6  certified mail return receipt requested. And we can

          7  amend this bill if the sponsor will agree. We can

          8  amend it and put those words in and then your

          9  problem is solved. I would propose such amendment. I

         10  don't know how you do amendments exactly. I don't

         11  know if there is a formal process in the Committee.

         12  But I would propose that the bill be so amended.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: I would just

         14  add, I'm certainly open to that amendment. I think

         15  one of the things that we will do after this hearing

         16  is that Landmarks, Land Use staff and my general

         17  counsel will sit down and work out whatever

         18  technical details there are in the bill.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I just

         20  mention that very often in my past life in Albany,

         21  we did add language like that to legislation for the

         22  very reason that the Chairman pointed out. It's not

         23  unprecedented in anyway.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do you have a

         25  problem with that?
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          2                 MR. SILBERMAN: I don't think I have a

          3  problem with that. I have to think it through for a

          4  lot of -- I mean, the warning letter is the section

          5  that the Council Member Koppell was pointing to does

          6  not impose a penalty. It's primarily a way to say

          7  let's have this conversation. My gut instinct and

          8  given the expense and time of doing that, that I'll

          9  have to look into whether that makes sense in that

         10  case. But when there is a violation, I believe the

         11  ECB, we can look at how ECB does it and we can --

         12  everyone's goal, our goal, I just need to emphasis

         13  again is this is not about penalties.

         14                 We give these people all these grace

         15  periods because we're not interested in penalties.

         16  We really just want compliance. I think our goals

         17  are the same. We want people to come in and we want

         18  them to actually get notification and we want to

         19  have discussion and hopefully they will cure it

         20  quickly.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Well, look there

         22  is no question that we love each other.

         23                 MR. SILBERMAN: Absolutely.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: The only issue is

         25  that we want to make sure that people are treated
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          2  fairly.

          3                 MR. SILBERMAN: Absolutely.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I think that

          5  giving them the opportunity and even at the end,

          6  even if they got it certified, they sign and they

          7  don't know what happen to it. The City is able to

          8  show them that, then that's important. If its a

          9  question of cost, then they'll add the $4.25 to the

         10  thousand dollar penalty that they served them or

         11  something like that. But since Councilman Avella

         12  said, you'll be discussing that at some other time.

         13  So, we'll forget that. Does anyone have any other

         14  questions? Thank you very, very much.

         15                 MR. SILBERMAN: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Now Diane Jackier

         17  will not read five pages worth of testimony about

         18  the Landmark issues. If you can just please

         19  highlight some of it, we'd appreciate it.

         20                 MS. JACKIER: Is there any specific

         21  order you would like me to go in?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I'm sorry?

         23                 MS. JACKIER: Is there any specific

         24  order you would like me to go in?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Not at all. Not
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          2  at all.

          3                 MS. JACKIER: Okay. Good morning,

          4  Council Members. My name is Diane Jackier, Director

          5  of Community and Government Affairs at the Landmarks

          6  Preservation Commission. I'm here today to testify

          7  on the Commission's designation of the houses at

          8  127, 129 and 131 MacDougal Street in Manhattan.

          9                 The Commission held a public hearing

         10  on the proposed designation of these three houses on

         11  April 20, 2004. Nine people spoke in favor including

         12  representatives of State Senator Tom Duane, Assembly

         13  Member Deborah Glick; the Greenwich Village Society

         14  for Historic Preservation; the Historic Districts

         15  Council; the Municipal Arts Society and the New York

         16  Landmarks Conservancy. The Commission also received

         17  letters of support from Manhattan Community Board 2;

         18  the Northeast Office of the National Trust for

         19  Historic Preservation and the Preservation League of

         20  New York State. The Commission had previously held

         21  hearings on these houses in 1966. There were no

         22  speakers in opposition at any of the hearings for

         23  these houses. The Commission designated these houses

         24  on June 8, 2004.

         25                 Throughout the early 19th century,
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          2  Federal style houses were one of the most common

          3  house types in New York City, characterized by their

          4  two- story height, Flemish bond brickwork, low

          5  stoops with wrought- ironwork, peaked roofs, simple

          6  cornices and double dormers. The houses at 127, 129

          7  and 131 MacDougal Street notable singularly and as a

          8  group are among the relatively rare surviving and

          9  significantly intact buildings of their style and

         10  period of Manhattan as most of the other Federal

         11  style houses have been demolished or severely

         12  altered. The Commission urges you to affirm the

         13  designation of the houses at 127, 129 and 131

         14  MacDougal Street.

         15                 I also have testimony for the

         16  Wilbraham in Manhattan --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Chairman,

         18  do you want her to go through all them before we ask

         19  questions? I have some questions on that one.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Well, when she

         21  gets out of breath.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay, thank

         23  you. Two questions. First of all, it is interesting

         24  that the owners did not apparently appear here.

         25                 MS. JACKIER: They didn't come to the
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          2  public hearings. We had had meetings with all of

          3  three of the owners, but we never received anything

          4  in writing from them subsequently.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: What was

          6  their attitude? Can you share that with us?

          7                 MS. JACKIER: It's always very hard to

          8  characterize. As far as I know, none of them were

          9  opposed. But there was no written letter that we

         10  had. So, we don't characterize someone else's

         11  testimony.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But there are

         13  aware of this proceeding?

         14                 MS. JACKIER: Yes, yes and we meet

         15  with all of them.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Were they

         17  aware that the Council has to approve this?

         18                 MS. JACKIER: I know that they

         19  received notification from your office and they are

         20  also told of the process. That it goes to the

         21  Landmarks Commission and the City Planning

         22  Commission and then City Council.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay. Why was

         24  this looked at in '66 and then not followed up?

         25  That's quite some time ago.
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          2                 MS. JACKIER: Our records from 1966

          3  are certainly not as good as they are today. As far

          4  as I know, there were a lot of buildings that were

          5  heard in 1966 and I don't have any specific

          6  information what happened at the public hearing.

          7  Whether there was any support or opposition. We

          8  don't have those records. I don't know what

          9  happened.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Now you said

         11  and I don't think you mispoke, you said my office. I

         12  guess you meant the Council office sent notification

         13  because this is not my district.

         14                 MS. JACKIER: I'm assuming, it's the

         15   --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: The Landmark

         17  Committee?

         18                 MS. JACKIER: The Land Use Committee

         19  sends notification to the owners of this hearing.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Did we send

         21  notification? I don't know. Mr. Chairman, did we

         22  send notice to the owners?

         23                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Project

         24  Managers do.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: What does
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          2  that mean?

          3                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Project Manager

          4  for the project. The Project Managers typically do.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Who is the

          6  Project Manager? Is the Project Manager someone on

          7  our staff?

          8                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Did you send

         10  notice to the owners that this -- no, you don't send

         11  notice.

         12                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: We typically

         13  do.

         14                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: The answer is

         15  that we typically do send notice to the owners and

         16  Landmarks provide us with a list of the owners that

         17  they have and we typically do.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Did we in

         19  this case?

         20                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I am told

         21  apparently we did not.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I want to

         23  make it clear to everybody here including the

         24  members of the Committee that the fact the owner

         25  might be opposed to it does not mean that I wouldn't
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          2  vote for it. But it does mean that I would like to

          3  hear from them. If they have an opposition, know

          4  why. I'm a little bit troubled by the fact a custom

          5  of this Committee was omitted in this case for

          6  whatever reason. Mistakes can happen.

          7                 There is a calendar problem in terms

          8  of postponing consideration. Is that right? I would

          9  propose, Mr. Chair, just as a matter. If it is the

         10  procedure to send notice and we didn't do it here,

         11  that we should put it over. I also would say to the

         12  Landmark Commission representatives that it really

         13  would be helpful to know the position of the owners.

         14  I mean, why not just ask them. What's your position?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Can I interpret

         16  for a minute? It's the same issue. Do you send

         17  certified return receipt to the owners?

         18                 MS. JACKIER: We do send it to them,

         19  yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You sent

         21  certified return receipt?

         22                 MS. JACKIER: Yes, for the public

         23  hearings we do.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Excellent.

         25                 MS. JACKIER: We also met with all
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          2  three of the owners.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Very good.

          4                 MS. JACKIER: If not before the public

          5  hearings.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do you know how

          7  they felt on this?

          8                 MR. SILBERMAN: I think the issue for

          9  us, the short answer is two of the owners we believe

         10  were in favor and one was --

         11                 MS. JACKIER: -- Not opposed.

         12                 MR. SILBERMAN: We feel very

         13  uncomfortable characterizing people's views. They

         14  have plenty of opportunity to come and state them

         15  publicly.

         16                 MS. JACKIER: But they just never sent

         17  anything to us in writing.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Does that change

         19  your mind at all?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I still would

         21  suggest that we send them notice. That's our normal

         22  process, we should follow it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: No problem. So

         24  those items are laid over. That means, Councilman

         25  Koppell, when I said originally that all the rest of
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          2  the items are laid over, I was telling the truth

          3  when you corrected me. Right?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No, that's

          5  fine.

          6                 MS. JACKIER: There are three more

          7  designations. It's up to you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Go ahead.

          9                 MS. JACKIER: I'm going to talk about

         10  the Wilbraham in Manhattan. On December 15, 1998,

         11  the Landmarks Commission held a public hearing on

         12  the proposed designation of the Wilbraham. Two

         13  people spoke in favor including a representative of

         14  the Historic Districts Council. The Commission held

         15  a second hearing on May 18, 2004. Four people spoke

         16  in favor including representatives of State Senator

         17  Liz Krueger, the Historic Districts Council and the

         18  New York Landmarks Conservancy. The Commissioner

         19  also received several letters of support including

         20  those from Council Member Christine Quinn, Community

         21  Board 5 in Manhattan; the Metropolitan Chapter of

         22  the Victorian Society in America and the 29th Street

         23  Neighborhood Association. There were no speakers in

         24  opposition. On June 8, 2004, the Commission voted to

         25  designate the building a New York City Landmark.
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          2                 The Wilbraham built in 1888 to 1890

          3  as a bachelor apartment hotel was commissioned by

          4  prominent Scottish- American jeweler, William Moir

          5  as a real estate investment. It was designed by the

          6  versatile New York architectural firm of D & J

          7  Jardine. Located at the northwest corner of Fifth

          8  Avenue and West 30th Street, the building is eight

          9  stories high including a mansard roof. Clad in a

         10  handsome combination of Philadelphia brick,

         11  Belleville brownstone and cast iron, the Wilbraham

         12  is extraordinarily well detailed and reflects the

         13  influence of the Romanesque Revival style in the

         14  rock faced stonework and intricately carved stone

         15  detail.

         16                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         17  the designation of the Wilbraham.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I'm going to

         19  have the same question I guess. What happen with the

         20  owner here? There must be an owner.

         21                 MS. JACKIER: We met with the owner

         22  for this one as well and did not receive anything in

         23  writing from them in terms of their position on

         24  designation.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Have we
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          2  written to the owner on this one?

          3                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Apparently,

          5  we've written to the owner on this, Mr. Chairman,

          6  and in that instance I have no objection. We'll vote

          7  in favor. Thank you.

          8                 MS. JACKIER: Next proposed

          9  designation is the Avenue H Subway Station in

         10  Brooklyn. On June 15, the Landmarks Commission held

         11  a public hearing. Ten people spoke in favor

         12  including Council Member Simcha Felder and

         13  representatives of State Assembly Member James F.

         14  Brennan; Community Board 14 in Brooklyn; the Midwood

         15  Park Homeowners Association and the Historic

         16  Districts Council. The two co- presidents of the

         17  Fiske Terrace Association also spoke in favor. There

         18  were no speakers in opposition and the Commission

         19  designated the building a landmark on June 29, 2004.

         20                 The Avenue H Subway Station is

         21  notable as a rare surviving example of an above-

         22  ground wood railway station. Built in 1905 to '06,

         23  for developer Thomas Benton Ackerson, the building

         24  originally served as a real estate office to sell

         25  properties in the adjacent planned residential
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          2  community of Fiske Terrace. In 1908, after it had

          3  fulfilled its original purpose, the structure was

          4  converted into a train station for the Brighton

          5  Beach Railroad which contributed to the significance

          6  suburban development of the area. The structure with

          7  a hipped and flared roof and wrap around porch,

          8  evokes the area's Colonia Revival and Queen Anne

          9  style houses. The station retains much of its

         10  historic fabric from a corbelled chimney to peeled

         11  log porch columns.

         12                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         13  the designation.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Is it still a

         15  subway stop?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

         17                 MS. JACKIER: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: An active stop?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Yes.

         20                 MS. JACKIER: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Did we get any

         22  response from MTA as to their feelings of upkeep and

         23  maintenance?

         24                 MS. JACKIER: We work very closely

         25  with the MTA on this designation and they just did
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          2  not testify at our public hearing. They were really

          3  terrific and very cooperative with us.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But they

          5  didn't testify?

          6                 MS. JACKIER: Right.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. It's the

          8  same problem in a different name. We're not getting

          9  anything written from the people that will be

         10  responsible for maintenance. I would agree with

         11  Oliver Koppell, there is some inherent problem with

         12  that. It's one thing, I'm not against landmarking,

         13  but the people that are responsible for the building

         14  are not giving us any response to the Committee. How

         15  do we know that they are and no aspirations on Diane

         16  or Commissioner, but how do we know that those

         17  conversations are how they feel today. Or those

         18  conversations or how the next owner may feel.

         19                 It's a problem and I think this goes

         20  back to how contact is made. I'd like to see an

         21  envelope on how you mail to people now. What does

         22  the letter look like? Is it a regular plain letter

         23  with the City of New York or does it say this is an

         24  important document on there or something? Because

         25  even if you send it certified mail, if it's still a
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          2  regular envelope with no important critical

          3  information on the outside of it, it will make

          4  somebody open it. The person may still ignore it and

          5  we have to at some point hear from the people that

          6  are directly affected before we vote as a Committee.

          7  I'm not again against Landmarking, but I'm concerned

          8  about what the impact of the people that will be

          9  primarily affected by these options.

         10                 MS. JACKIER: For all the designations

         11  I have testified on today, we did have meetings with

         12  the owners. It's just that we have not received --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Is there some

         14  way that we can get either public testimony on

         15  record?

         16                 MS. JACKIER: There was nothing that

         17  we received on record. So we are wary to

         18  characterize their position on designation.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But at the

         20  assumption that they're in favor. But it's just an

         21  assumption.

         22                 MS. JACKIER: We don't state their

         23  position for that reason. That we wouldn't want to

         24  characterize their position on designation in

         25  anyway. Our process for notifying owners when we are
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          2  interested in their property is we send them initial

          3  letters saying that we would like to set up a

          4  meeting with them and talk to them. We do send

          5  owners certified letters for our public hearings. We

          6  send them letters when their building is designated.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Does the

          8  outside of the envelope say public hearing, critical

          9  must attend or does the notice says in violation?

         10                 MS. JACKIER: There is nothing that

         11  states that it is regarding a public hearing. But it

         12  does say New York City Landmarks Preservation.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: In the letter,

         14  but I'm saying on the envelope.

         15                 MS. JACKIER: And on the envelope as

         16  well. The return address is on the front of the

         17  envelope.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right. But

         19  does it say critical public hearing, must attend. Or

         20  critical notice of violation, must respond. Does the

         21  outside of the envelope say that?

         22                 MS. JACKIER: Not on the outside of

         23  the envelope.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: When you are

         25  getting 30 pieces of mail and some people just don't
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          2  respond unless it's something that hits them in the

          3  face. I'm curious to find out about that. I know

          4  I've been working with the Department of Finance on

          5  the same issue and they've changed their envelopes

          6  to some degree. If it's possible that you could just

          7  post a stick- um on there saying or a label on

          8  there, critical must respond. That would save

          9  possible postage for you on this. We need to do

         10  something to ensure that we hear from or that the

         11  Committee has some kind of response from the people

         12  directly affected.

         13                 I would also like to have my name

         14  added as a co- sponsor for 403, but I think we need

         15  to figure out how to deal with this prevailing

         16  issue. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Any other

         18  questions? I have one last question. I want to

         19  acknowledge --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I would say

         21  this to Leroy, I agree with everything he said. But

         22  I think with the MTA is a little different. They're

         23  pretty sophisticated folks. They know their way

         24  around the block. It's different than the owner at

         25  MacDougal Street who may not know what to do. But

                                                            41

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  the MTA knows. If they were opposed to this thing, I

          3  assume they would be here and tell us. I'm not that

          4  concerned about this one. Although I am concerned,

          5  Leroy is absolutely right, the envelope should say

          6  something. It should be return receipt requested. I

          7  can tell you this and I don't exaggerate and I think

          8  you probably have the same experience. I hope you

          9  do. I hope it's not my mailman or mail woman because

         10  we have both sexes delivering the mail.

         11                 At least once a week, I get mail

         12  intended for somebody else. At least once a week.

         13  Now I try to make a point to put it back in the

         14  mailbox or give it to my neighbor. And some of these

         15  mail seems like it's an ad or something, but some of

         16  it seems more important. I got a check the other

         17  day. It was clear it was a check. It was not

         18  intended for me. It was intended for someone else. I

         19  got a letter a month ago, I won't bore you, but I

         20  got a letter sent by someone from Syracuse to

         21  someone outside the state that came to me. I have no

         22  idea. I don't know how it got into my mail. But it

         23  did.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I want to

         25  acknowledge the presence of Councilman Phil Perkins

                                                            42

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  who is here with us. And I just want to ask Mr.

          3  Silberman one last question, please. Is there anyone

          4  to your knowledge that is opposed to the bill? I'm

          5  sorry. I understand. Forget it. Councilman Avella,

          6  to your knowledge, is there anyone that is opposed

          7  to this bill?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Not as far as

          9  I know.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         11  much. And thank you very much. She's not finished?

         12                 MS. JACKIER: It's for the New York

         13  and New Jersey Telephone Company Building.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I'm very

         15  interested in the New York/New Jersey Telephone

         16  Company one.

         17                 MS. JACKIER: It's in Brooklyn. On May

         18  18, the Landmarks Commission held a public hearing

         19  on the proposed designation of the New York and New

         20  Jersey Telephone Company Building. Also received was

         21  a letter of support from Council Member David

         22  Yassky. There were no speakers in opposition. On

         23  June 29, 2004, the Commission voted to designate the

         24  building a New York City Landmark.

         25                 The New York and New Jersey Telephone
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          2  Company Building is a monumental Beaux Arts style

          3  building occupying a major intersection in downtown

          4  Brooklyn. Built in 1897 to '98 to the designs of

          5  prominent Beaux Arts educated architect Rudolf Daus,

          6  the building capitalizes on its prominent site

          7  through its rounded corner, heavy projecting

          8  cornice, colossal half columns, large arched

          9  openings on the upper stories and massive rusticated

         10  base. The limestone, gray brick and terra cotta

         11  building is elaborately ornamented with brackets,

         12  pedimented windows, cartouches and decorations

         13  advertising the building's function as a telephone

         14  headquarters including intertwined wires, bells,

         15  crossed receivers and representations of an 1898

         16  telephone.

         17                 The building was the third

         18  headquarters of the New York and New Jersey

         19  Telephone Company, which was founded in 1883. The

         20  company provided telephone service for Long Island,

         21  Staten Island and northern New Jersey. By 1897, it

         22  had over 16,000 subscribers and 21,000 miles of

         23  wire. The new building was not only described as

         24   "one of the handsomest structures in the City," but

         25  included many structural and technical innovations
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          2  incorporating a heating and ventilating system

          3  intended to keep the operating room dust- free. The

          4  building is considered to be among Rudolf Daus's

          5  most significant commissions.

          6                 The Landmarks Commission urges you to

          7  affirm the designation.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I see the staff

          9  mentions that this one item also has the same

         10  problem about the lack of notification for the

         11  owners. As a matter of courtesy, we will lay this

         12  one over as well. We're laying over the item on

         13  Heckler Street, Ironworks Building on 100- 118 North

         14  11th Street as well. We mentioned that earlier. Are

         15  there any others that you're going to talk about?

         16                 MS. JACKIER: That's it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You're sure?

         18                 MS. JACKIER: Positive.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You're sure?

         20  Okay. Thank you very much. Roger Lang and Simeon

         21  Bankoft, if you could come up together as a panel.

         22  We would appreciate it. Yes, Council Member Comrie.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Yes, Mr.

         24  Chair. Can I have permission to vote? I have my

         25  children here.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Well, first of

          3  all, we need proof that your children are here.

          4  Where are they?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: They went into

          6  the other room and I'm afraid they make wreck

          7  something historical if I don't go take them.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You want

          9  permission to vote, I am only willing to grant you

         10  permission if you bring them back in here before you

         11  leave.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Sergeant of

         13  Arms, have you seen my rugrats out there somewhere?

         14  I'm sorry.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Are you voting?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'd like to

         17  vote aye on all allowable items and you'll determine

         18  what that is.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay. You have

         20  that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Jeanna will

         22  testify that my children are outside in the

         23  chambers.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I'm not accepting

         25  that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: They wanted to

          3  meet you because I told them you are always on time

          4  for Committee meetings.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Whoa. Can I take

          6  it back?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But I'd like

          8  to vote aye on all allowable items.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Granted, granted.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And be

         11  excused. And I want to congratulate Councilman

         12  Avella on Intro. 403 which I think is a good

         13  opportunity to make people more responsible to

         14  protecting our landmarks items in the City. But I

         15  also want to encourage the Landmarks Commission to

         16  try to adopt some new envelopes at least to make

         17  people realize that this is a letter that they must

         18  respond to as opposed to the plain generic City

         19  envelope that I'm sure they're using now. Thank you,

         20  Mr. Chair.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You're welcome.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Find out where

         25  he's going with the kids. Okay. Simeon Bankoft and
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          2  Roger Lang. Whatever you want. How are we going to

          3  do this? The items that are laid over, we're going

          4  to testify today and then do it again. We're not

          5  going to do it twice. We're doing it now. You got

          6  it. Pat says we're doing it now. I'm just mentioning

          7  that we're not going to do it again when we vote on

          8  it. All the items that we're laying over because we

          9  have no notification to the owners, we're going to

         10  testify today. Then once we notify them unless there

         11  is some problem, we're just going to vote on it.

         12                 MR. LANG: Mr. Chairman, as I

         13  understand it,  then you would accept testimony on

         14  those matters now?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

         16                 MR. LANG: Thank you. Good afternoon.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Good afternoon.

         18                 MR. LANG: My name is Roger Lang. I'm

         19  here representing the New York Landmark Conservancy

         20  and urging your support for all the items before you

         21  today including those that will be laid over for

         22  some period of time. Let me begin with Council

         23  Member Avella's welcome initiative, 403 to provide

         24  civil penalties for demolition by neglect of

         25  landmarks and buildings in historic districts. We're
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          2  delighted the Administration and the Commission

          3  supports this. The Landmarks Conservancy also

          4  supports this.

          5                 We believe that it was part of the

          6  original civil fines package in 1998. We supported

          7  it at that time and we are delighted that you are

          8  rectifying its exclusion from the package at that

          9  time. We think that this clearly gives the

         10  Commission the express authority to enhance the

         11  provisions in the Landmarks law which are some very

         12  sharp teeth indeed to prevent landmarks from falling

         13  into disrepair intentionally. We think it enhances

         14  the Commission's express authority in this area and

         15  we recommend that you and your colleagues all

         16  support it.

         17                 Just a word about the demolition by

         18  neglect. It is not only important for the individual

         19  landmark building in question, it is important to

         20  the surrounding community. These buildings become

         21  blighting influences upon the community and they

         22  inhibit the physical and the social and the economic

         23  regeneration of the community. No where could that

         24  be more clear than in the new Brighton Village Hall

         25  case where that building for the better part of two
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          2  decades deteriorated, threaten public safety,

          3  blighted visually the area and inhibited

          4  redevelopment on a key site. It is important as I

          5  would argue as an economic development initiative as

          6  well as a historical preservation initiative.

          7                 One regrets that it could not apply

          8  more broadly than the law provides because I can

          9  provide you with a long and shameful list of City

         10  owned and State owned neglected historic buildings

         11  which could benefit from the same sharp teeth.

         12                 With respect to the individual

         13  landmarks designations before you, I'm not going to

         14  speak to all of them. I do want to say as

         15  particularly noteworthy the Wilbraham built in 1890

         16  as a bachelor apartment hotel and a real jewel in

         17  Manhattan and the Heckler Ironworks Building, a

         18  porta curtain wall building from the turn of the

         19  last century. Incredibly important.

         20                 In closing, let me just read to you

         21  something your colleagues wrote about the three

         22  Federal houses on MacDougal. In September of this

         23  year, the Landmarks Preservation Commission received

         24  a plea from public officials that read, we write to

         25  you to strongly urge your expeditious consideration
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          2  as individual landmarks, the 13 Federal row houses

          3  identified in the New York Landmarks Conservancy

          4  document, Federal row houses of lower Manhattan.

          5  Among those 13 are the three on MacDougal Street.

          6  The letter was signed by five officials, State

          7  Senator Thomas Duane, State Assembly Woman Deborah

          8  Glick, City Council Member Alan Gerson, Christine

          9  Quinn and Margarita Lopez. These 13 are located in

         10  their districts and they are uniformly in support.

         11                 You may also be aware --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Can I interrupt

         13  you just for a minute? Because Councilman Perkins

         14  has an emergency and would like to vote. I'm sorry.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         16  very much, Mr. Chairman, and I apologize for the

         17  interruption. I have to make a quick exit. I just

         18  wanted to take an opportunity to vote aye on all.

         19  Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Perkins.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Aye on all.

         22  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You may continue.

         24                 MR. LANG: Pleased to be interrupted

         25  any time for affirmative votes like that. This
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          2  initiative has also received the support of three

          3  Community Boards 1, 2 and 3 in Manhattan in the

          4  affected areas. And you may have seen the media

          5  coverage which included a television news segment on

          6  New York 1, a New York time story by David Dunlap

          7  (phonetic) as well as articles in the Village Voice

          8  and the Real Estate Weekly. Clearly, the owners of

          9  these properties are aware of this initiative.

         10                 I know from personal conversations

         11  with all three that they are aware of the Landmarks

         12  Designation. I characterized those conversations as

         13  private and I don't think it would be appropriate

         14  for the Conservancy to speak on their behalf. But I

         15  can assure all members of the Council that they are

         16  fully aware of this initiative and as are the other

         17  ten owners of the other ten buildings involved.

         18                 Let me just close by saying that

         19  these buildings have been with us since between 1800

         20  and 1830. It is utterly astonishing in the borough

         21  of Manhattan with such tumultuous change for 200

         22  years that these buildings have survived and that

         23  they are intact and of landmark quality. They were

         24  heard 38 years ago. It is unconscionable to wait

         25  more than the week or ten days that is forth coming.
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          2  Please, designate them. Thank you.

          3                 MR. BANKOFT: Good afternoon, Council

          4  Members. Simeon Bankoft, Historical District

          5  Council. It's a pleasure to see everyone. I hope

          6  everyone had a good summer. First of all, I would

          7  like to speak in the affirmative about all the

          8  initiatives before you today. But first I'll address

          9  my comments to Council Member Avella's bill which is

         10  an astonishing, an astonishing bill that really

         11  speaks to the strong preservation ethic that is

         12  emerging and has really emerged in taking grasp of

         13  the City Council and within, I believe, New York.

         14  That we are really beginning to cherish and treasure

         15  our historic properties more and therefore, are

         16  doing more to help preserve them and help protect

         17  them.

         18                 This particular bill as Roger so

         19  eloquently put really addresses something that was

         20  taken out of the original 1998 civil fines bill that

         21  at the time the Historic District Council was upset

         22  that it was taken out. We're thrilled and among all

         23  the other advocates who were also upset and in fact

         24  the City was not thrilled about that all. I'm glad

         25  that after six years of seeing that the actual civil
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          2  fines legislation has been enacted and has been

          3  successful that we can now take this further step to

          4  increase and return it to what we had originally

          5  intended which is giving the Landmarks Commission

          6  the real strength and tools to adequately and

          7  properly care for the buildings under its

          8  jurisdiction.

          9                 I would like to also reinforce what

         10  Mark Silberman had said earlier that this bill is

         11  for those cases where the properties in question

         12  become blighted, become really almost to the point

         13  of public safety. This is really a way to prevent

         14  that from happening and in the truest preservation

         15  sense to save the buildings which we deem to be

         16  important. This is not going to be about someone's

         17  paint is peeling or someone's window is cracked.

         18  This is buildings that are that close to actually

         19  having emergency demolition. This will enable the

         20  City to step in to really work well and efficiently

         21  and in fact, save money by preventing having to go

         22  through the onus of bringing it through the State

         23  Supreme Court. Spending staff time, bringing in corp

         24  counsel. Instead, this will create a regulatable and

         25  well kind of ironed path to help save these
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          2  buildings.

          3                 I was listening with great interest

          4  to your comments about certification. I think you

          5  brought up a great deal of very good points. I would

          6  like to just insert into the record two comments

          7  which is that as I was saying earlier about

          8  preservation being an emerging ethic, it gets a lot

          9  of press. All the buildings here that are being

         10  discussed have been covered in the major news

         11  daily's and also this bill as well is being covered

         12  in the daily's. So, there is a great interest. That

         13  should be taken into account. I've been for council

         14  committee's talking about the paucity of the

         15  Landmark's budget and I would just like the Council

         16  Members to think that if we are going to asking them

         17  to start doing certified mail, we should remember

         18  that at budget time. That's a probably a 400 percent

         19  increase in their postage. And OTPS money is hard

         20  fought.

         21                 The final thing about Council Member

         22  Avella's bill is I would like to say that I have

         23  personally heard from three dozen community groups.

         24  From Richmond Hill, from Bayridge, from the

         25  Preservation League of Staten Island, Riverdale
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          2  Historic District, Brooklyn Heights Association,

          3  Greenwich Village Landmark, the Upper West Side, the

          4  Upper East Side, all of whom very much in favor of

          5  this bill and really congratulating the Council on

          6  their foresight in this matter.

          7                 With the regard to the buildings,

          8  very briefly I'd like to say that we're thrilled

          9  with all these buildings. Particularly, these are

         10  all cases which show that the City Administration

         11  responding to the community. In all of these cases,

         12  the MacDougal Street buildings, the New York/New

         13  Jersey Telephone Buildings, Avenue H, the Wilbraham

         14  and the Heckler. All of these were brought to the

         15  City's attention by people in the communities and

         16  the OPC has responded positively and has worked with

         17  both the owners and the community members to

         18  preserve these buildings that have been deemed

         19  important.

         20                 The Heckler Building, for example, in

         21  addition to its architectural excellent will be, I

         22  believe, the first landmark within Williamsburg, if

         23  not the first, then one of the first. That's really

         24  something to see a community to say this building is

         25  important to us. The New York/New Jersey Telephone
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          2  Building is very important with regards to the

          3  continuing evolving conversation about the

          4  development of downtown Manhattan and trying to see

          5  what are the pertinent parts of the community's past

          6  that should be kept and retained.

          7                 The MacDougal Street houses, as Roger

          8  said, 38 years ago. There is actually a reason why a

          9  lot of things were heard in 1966 and not heard

         10  again. I'm not going to into because we're all

         11  caught for time. These buildings have survived 38

         12  years of development pressure in a very pressurized

         13  environment in the South Village. We're thrilled

         14  that they are going to happen.

         15                 I will just close up with the Avenue

         16  H Subway Stop which I have personal memories of as

         17  my father lives across the street from the Avenue H

         18  Subway Stop. I often used to take that subway when

         19  I'd go visit him. I have a fake memory that it used

         20  to have, I remember the potbelly stove. I don't

         21  think I could. But I really I'm sure I do. But this

         22  is also a terrific thing where the State decided,

         23  the SHPO, the New York State Historic Preservation

         24  Office, which is a wonderful agency, deemed this

         25  building not to be important. The Landmarks
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          2  Commission hearing the community, saying, no, no,

          3  this is not important, actually said no. This is an

          4  important building and acted where in fact New York

          5  State didn't. This is a real triumph of City

          6  government here. That's it. Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Just a comment

          8  Simeon, let me add the Fort Green Association and

          9  the Clinton Hills Society to your list of

         10  organizations that would endorse 403 and let me also

         11  say that I would like forward to working with you to

         12  increase the budget of Landmarks Preservation and

         13  specifically to increase funds to allow for more

         14  inspectors for enforcement.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Ms. Baldock, but

         16  in addition to this, you're also speaking about LU

         17  240. I will ask you to testify about LU 240. If you

         18  can take the mike and just push the button in so the

         19  light is not on.

         20                 MS. BALDOCK: So, I should start with

         21  the --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: LU 240.

         23                 MS. BALDOCK: Okay. Which is the

         24  MacDougal Street houses and first I just want to ask

         25  the Committee to move quickly on this designation. I
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          2  understand there is trouble with notifying the

          3  owners. But GVSHP and the Greenwich Village Society

          4  trust that both the Landmarks Preservation

          5  Commission and the Landmarks Conservancy have met

          6  with the owners and given them the opportunity to

          7  speak publicly. We ask that it moves forward quickly

          8  so it doesn't delay it any further.

          9                 Now for my testimony on the houses.

         10  While modestly altered, these three houses are

         11  wonderful and vivid example of the Federal style

         12  house. A form that has played such a crucial role in

         13  Greenwich Village, the City and the nation's

         14  development. As a first architectural style of the

         15  newly independent nation representing its democratic

         16  ideas, the Federal style carries tremendous

         17  importance in our collective history. As a part of

         18  the first wave of urban development in Greenwich

         19  Village, these particular Federal houses tell the

         20  story of lower Manhattan's transformation from

         21  farmland and rural settlement to urban neighborhood.

         22                 Remarkably, in spite of their siting

         23  outside the Greenwich Village historic district and

         24  just off of Washington Square Park, these houses

         25  have survived for almost two centuries. Designation
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          2  will ensure that their good future and ours

          3  continues. These three houses are among 13 Federal

          4  houses proposed for designation by the New York

          5  Landmarks Conservancy and the Greenwich Village

          6  Society for Historic Preservation.

          7                 Federal era houses collectively make

          8  an incredibly valuable and vulnerable historic

          9  resource. Of the 300 or so of these surviving houses

         10  in lower Manhattan, built between 1790 and 1835,

         11  roughly half enjoy no landmark protections

         12  whatsoever and could disappear at any time. In fact,

         13  in 1995 the Landmarks Preservation Commission asked

         14  the Greenwich Village Society for Historic

         15  Preservation to survey and document the surviving

         16  Federal houses of lower Manhattan for them to assist

         17  them in moving forward and protecting these

         18  structures. These three houses are among the first

         19  to fall off in that nearly decade old effort. And

         20  our proposal for landmarking of an additional ten

         21  houses is meant to help jump start that long stalled

         22  process and highlight some of the best and most

         23  endangered of this rare breed still left.

         24                 I thus strongly urge the Subcommittee

         25  to approve this designation and also to work with

                                                            60

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  the Committee and advocates to ensure that other

          3  Federal houses are reviewed and protected as well.

          4  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you. For

          6  those of you that have never been at the Landmarks

          7  Committee hearings, I'm going to ask you to limit

          8  your remarks to anything that was not said. If there

          9  is anything that you have to add, we will give you

         10  as much time as you want. I know that it's hard

         11  because these issues are very important to you and

         12  you spent the time coming here and we don't take

         13  that lightly. But at the same time, if the points

         14  have been made and some of them have been made

         15  repeatedly, we would appreciate whatever remarks you

         16  have to add to whatever was said. In terms, Intro.

         17  No. 403 which all of you are going to want to speak

         18  on, you'll have to decide who's talking first. It's

         19  much easier for me to let you decide. Whoever wants

         20  to speak first.

         21                 MS. MCCLOSKEY: Erin McCloskey

         22  representing Landmark West. Landmark West supports

         23  the proposed demolition by neglect bill. This bill

         24  will allow the Landmarks Commission to take a strong

         25  stand against building owners who let their landmark
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          2  buildings fall into such a state of disrepair that

          3  demolition is the only option.

          4                 Building owners of the historic

          5  property should be made accountable for the effects

          6  that neglect can have on a historic structure. It is

          7  our hope that not only will this legislation be

          8  adopted but that the Landmarks Commission will

          9  strictly enforce the provision set forth. Faced with

         10  a potential losses of our most valuable historic

         11  architecture, the Landmarks Commission must be given

         12  the power and incentives it needs to be tough. Thank

         13  you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: That was

         15  excellent testimony. Next.

         16                 MS. GAINES- GOLOM (phonetic): My name

         17  is Doris Gaines- Golom. I'm on the Landmark/Land Use

         18  Committee of CB2 in downtown Brooklyn. I'm also on

         19  the Exec Board of the 14th Association with supports

         20  passage of this bill.

         21                 I'm speaking today only as an

         22  individual, homeowner resident in Fort Green for

         23  over 20 years. For many years and many communities,

         24  we have seen the ugliest of demolition by neglect. A

         25  cancer which seeps into surrounding buildings,
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          2  eventually comprising the structural integrity.

          3  Indeed, the entire adjacent community is assaulted

          4  by such blight. Rodents, odors, unsightly, unsafe

          5  conditions. All these things are rampant in most of

          6  these situations. This must stop.

          7                 I'm going to step out of my two

          8  paragraph statement here to just say something else.

          9  Something which I'm very familiar in our own

         10  neighborhood. I live right in the middle of Fort

         11  Green. Very good location. And just a half of block

         12  from me, there is a group of buildings which have

         13  been, I guess, maybe in the 50's modernized. They

         14  have just brick facades, no stoops and so on. They

         15  are very nice buildings. There are five of them. One

         16  person owns three of those buildings. They are

         17  located with one building on each side of the center

         18  one. The center one is an absolute mess. It's

         19  decayed, decayed, decayed for over 40 years. The

         20  windows are falling out. There have been fires

         21  there. There are rodents, this that at and the

         22  other.

         23                 However, you understand that this man

         24  can say, well my next door neighbors are not

         25  complaining because he owns those two buildings and
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          2  he keeps those in good repair. The rest of the block

          3  is essentially all traditional brownstones. Other

          4  neighbors have complained. But that building, the

          5  windows are falling out as I say and he's been

          6  approached time and time and time again. Sell that

          7  building and he could now get a very excellent price

          8  even though it's in that kind of condition. Get an

          9  excellent price. He's not interested. He tells

         10  people. It's a tax write off for me. I'm never

         11  selling that building. It's going to sit there. I

         12  don't care what happens to it.

         13                 That's one instance which I know just

         14  down the street from me comes within what we're

         15  talking about today. Going back to my comments here.

         16  In July, the City imposed application fees for work

         17  to be done on designated properties. Fees which many

         18  of us feel to be counterproductive. Discouraging

         19  healthy maintenance and improvement in historic

         20  districts. In my view, the City owes us one. And

         21  this bill can be part of that redress. I exhort you

         22  to pass this bill. Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         24                 MR. LEINER: I'm Glen Leiner, Vice

         25  President of the Art Deco Society of New York. Our
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          2  organization commends Council Member Avella for

          3  addressing a critical weakness in the local

          4  preservation process which merits your immediate

          5  attention.

          6                 Demolition by neglect has frequently

          7  undermined the enforcement of regulatory historic

          8  preservation and frustrated the efforts of the Art

          9  Deco Society and other organizations. While benign

         10  neglect has sometimes been characterized as the

         11  handmaiden of preservation, the Art Deco Society

         12  believes it deliberate acts of defiance to our local

         13  law require inappropriate and consistent response.

         14  Without this proposed amendment, the scope of our

         15  law remains incomplete and will continue to be

         16  evaded.

         17                 On behalf of the Art Deco Society of

         18  New York, I thank you for the opportunity to

         19  testify.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         21                 MS. BALDOCK: Melissa Baldock from the

         22  Greenwich Village Society for Historic Preservation,

         23  The largest membership organization in Greenwich

         24  Village. I would like to offer praise and gratitude

         25  to Council Member Avella, the sponsor of the bill
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          2  and to this district Council for the advocacy for

          3  the measure. We strongly support Intro 403.

          4                 Allowing the imposition of civil

          5  penalties for neglect of a landmark site or a site

          6  within a historic district is a long over due step

          7  which will hopefully offer effective tools to

          8  prevent the demolition by neglect of historic

          9  properties or certainly at least to appropriately

         10  penalize owners who fought the law in such manner.

         11  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you. We

         13  will now take a vote on all the items.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Mr. Chairman,

         15  while we're waiting, staff has given me some e-

         16  mails that have come into the office in support of

         17  Intro. 403. Society for the Preservation of Long

         18  Island Antiquities, the Art Deco Society we heard

         19  from, Society for Clinton Hill, the Fort Green

         20  Association, I think we also know about. And

         21  Associated Cultural Resources Consultants as well as

         22  the Queens Historical Society.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Mr. Chairman,
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          2  there is an additional individual who would like to

          3  testify if you would be so kind as to allow that

          4  person to testify. She's filling out a form as we

          5  speak. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Let's hear what

          7  you have to say. Give her the form because we have

          8  to vote.

          9                 MS. BARNES: I'll try not to be

         10  repetitive. I'm Sharon Barnes, I represent the

         11  Society for Clinton Hill. We very much support this

         12  legislation. We commend you all for your

         13  consideration of it. In our own neighborhood, we

         14  have seen developers leave wonderful buildings open

         15  to the elements and to the vandals. We've seen them

         16  strip out every piece of woodwork. We have seen them

         17  remove beams so that buildings were ready to fall.

         18                 In our calls to LPC, to 311, to the

         19  police, to the others, they have told us that there

         20  is almost nothing they can do if the owner refuses

         21  to cooperate. We've spoken to these owners and when

         22  they refuse to do anything, you know that this is

         23  doing through neglect what they can't do legally.

         24                 We thank you very much for your

         25  consideration and your positive vote. Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: If you can fill

          3  out that form and give to the Sergeant of Arms. We

          4  will now vote on two items. Right?  -- 14 and also

          5  Manhattan Community Board 5, LU 213 which is the

          6  Wilbraham at 1 West 30th Street. And I recommend an

          7  aye vote on both.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Chair Felder.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Comrie.

         11  I'm sorry, Council Member Koppell.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Oddo.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Based on the

         15  Chairman's recommendation of an aye vote and his

         16  positive testimony before the LPC on the subway, I

         17  vote aye on both.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote stands at

         19  five in the affirmative, none in the negative and no

         20  abstentions.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I just wanted to

         22  mention Councilman Barron, unfortunately had a

         23  family emergency and could not attend. He called

         24  earlier.

         25                 (Meeting concluded at 12:30 p.m.)
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